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City Hall Remodel Project – Pre-bid Meeting Minutes 

Date: 1/11/2023 

Conducting Meeting: Mayor Rod Westbroek 

Deadline for questions 1/20 bid 1/26 hard copy delivered to city hall 

 

 

We have to do this in two stages – first phase is conference room and bathrooms and windows second 

phase is the rest of the building.  

 

Conference Room 

 

In this room and all throughout the building – remove chair railing, crown molding, baseboards, be very 

careful don’t put holes in wall, remove big recessed lighting in conference room and patch holes. Put in 

6 new lights (this is a change to the bid) electrical. 

LVP flooring in this room, we need to pull up the flooring and dispose (this is a change) to match the 

level of flooring. We do not need an electrical outlet in this room. We want to test the outlets first 

mayor thinks this is okay.  

Wet bar 72 inches, have a base and overhead cabinets, double sink, plumbing is from the bathroom and 

have a crawlspace 2-3 feet below. We have a layout of the cabinets we can get to you.  

Remove and fill in recorders office window. Use same glass and move to the west wall – cut windows in.  

 

Bathrooms 

 

Need to be done separate so we have a working bathroom at all times.  

LVP on the floor and down the hallway and in the break room, Carpet tiles in the finance room and 

recorder room (whispers of this being different) 

Vanity in each bathroom with a sink. Try to make it ADA bathroom (different) bigger door and ADA 

counter top and open underneath. Frame it out of 2x4 and then cabinet top. 

Linoleum Tile in the bathroom now, needs to be torn up.  

Leave storage closet 

 

Breakroom 

 

Take out the wet bar and replace to match wetbar in the conference room. LVP on the floor.  

 

Move door on recorders office and patch the other hole.  

 

Finance office 

 

Replace carpet. Remove chair rail. Paint. Electrical has how many lights and what kind. Just replacement 

lights.  

 

LVP flooring goes into the council room with walkway between seating and dais areas, which will both 

be carpet tiles 
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Council room 

 

Remove platform. Probably 16 feet. we can measure it. This is built on top of subfloor, should have 

regular floor underneath. Pull back the new dais – it is not rounded 

Judge corner – state requires 6” rise. Build a platform and put a new desk for the judge. With a small 

table top rise for privacy.  

Main reception area counter raised section and a drop down for ADA.  

No light changes at all in that room. We want to try electricians that are experts rewire the switches to 

be on one. 

All the basement underneath all of this is unfinished.  

 

Doors – we want a full glass door 3 hinges satin nickel hinge, knotty alder door with clear glass – stain 

the door, jams and casing are paint. Closets and bathrooms will be a flush knotty alder door. 

Paint is 3 tones paint throughout.  

Ceilings white, and 2 other colors. 

All the painting will have to be rolled or brushed – no spray. We thought the first item would be 

replacing all doors throughout building, bring them into conference room to paint and finish then put 

them back on.  

 

Slats picture frame molding needs to come off in conference room.  

 

ONLY carpet in Kim’s office 

 

Paint in trevor’s (talking to Trevor this is new and was not discussed in this meeting but he wants his 

grey to match the new office grey) 

 

Baseboard and carpet in Dave and Trevor, no baseboard in Kim 

 

Leave crown in Dave’s and Kim’s 

  

Add a base cabinet near copier.  

 

Under is concrete can’t access anything underneath that. Put LVP. 

Fix some electrical outlets in back flex space. (add 3 more outlets) 

Two new windows outside is brick, will not go into the gable, cut brick the exact size of the window, we 

want to save the brick to use to patch and repair. And add a new windowsill. Above that we will do 

wood or siding, it has aluminum, we will have to go with smart board or hardy board and then paint to 

match gable.  

Amsco vinyl white window match the rest of the building. 
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Mark Larsen’s Office 

 

LVP through walkways and entry, but rest is carpet. New carpet in here. Quite a bit of patching in this 

office. Fix the wall with mudding used to have a wall need to fix that.  

No cabinets.  

ADA knobs throughout. Keyed locks only 2. 

 

Any questions 

Electrical we need exit lights and egress lights to be up to code and hardwire smoke detectors. Figure 3 

smoke detectors. 

Two exterior and may need one down the hall for exit signs – we figure 4 exit signs – just do the bug 

eyes 4 

 

Relocating a bell – we want to rewire so the buzzer is at the other door. Just relocate, not anything new. 

We only need to know when someone is at the main door 

 

Period of performance is not clear – when would you award and have completed 

Deadline is 26th at 2pm 

Full project, we anticipate awarding beginning part of February on the 7th council meeting.  

We want to do it as quickly as possible but we don’t have a deadline on it. We are open half a day on 

Fridays so we have days that if you need people not here we can work those hours. We don’t want to 

make you work at night, that’s up to you.  

 

What delays are caused by this being courthouse.  

Court is in session every first and third Thursday – we close down around 3:30 those days. And the court 

office has to remain locked if our recorder is not in there, we will need to schedule with her.  

Do BCI checks need to be done with work happening in that space? Ruling is if she is not there and you 

want to do work then yes you will if you do work while she is here you do not have to.  

 

Mayor I suggest we put a completion time frame in the event that something causes delay, so everyone 

knows the expectation. We will include in the notes 

 

Do you want a bid guarantee? We often give a 5% or 20% guarantee it does mention surety, but it 

mentions bid bond.  

No there wasn’t anything in there like that, let us talk 

 

Permitting if you are operating as the general, do we pull our own permits and are we reimbursed, or 

does the general pull it.  

We could probably do a permit on the whole thing and not charge for it.  

 

We will require that you are a licensed contractor and need liability and WC. We will put a portable 

restroom out here.  

 

A lot of addons is that going to be in the addendum. Yes that will be emailed this week.  
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Are you going to post a copy of the sign in sheet? Yes 

 

Do we need to put boards over the windows for Lisa’s?  

 

We will have a few priorities. Cabinets, window, we don’t want to be…… 

 

Do you have a staging area to store cabinets and supplies? 

We thought of putting a pod in the back to store stuff and we will take care of that.  

 

You are in charge of dumpsters and taking them out. Bid it as a general.  

 

Are we moving furniture like desks? 

No. We will get city staff to do that.  

 

Bidding process questions. Are you the GC, but do you want bids from GCs or is this ale cart,  

We are looking for sub bids.  

You can lump it all together and do it all, but we are the acting GC.  

How will you award if someone bids multiple items? Low bid on that portion? 

Probably yes, But we are curious about your qualifications and experience. We want it competitive, but 

if equal qualify, then lower bid, but less experience then higher. We are not asking you to submit 

qualifications up front.  

We will see what comes in, and then if we are considering you we will ask for qualifications.  

 

How many cabinet companies? 2 

We will put the layout as part of the addendum.  

 

You are welcome to walk through the building.  

 

 

SAVING TOILETS and faucet – new sinks 

 

We are doing grab bars in the ada bathroom 

We want to reuse the sink in the break room.  

All of the cabinets need to go out. This wont be as deep in here.  

 

Do we need to replace heat registers? 

I think we will want to. Floor ones will be bought and replaced by us 

 

It is LVP add this to addendum 

 

Window molding will come off and no new molding. Same with around doors.  

 

Will we be removing this? 



Pre-Bid Meeting Minutes 
Page 5 of 5 

Yes you will remove the dias and old reception desk.  

 

Upper cabinet behind the reception desk, stay far enough away from the lights.  

 

Do you want to patch this hole? 

Yes patch the hole above reception currently covered by a plate. 

Remove and repair the hole/cabinet by the judge corner.  

Basement is workable 

 

Just replace the lights back by trevor and Shaelee. This is all concrete. Carpet is starting to come up.  

 

Maryn and Mac’s office are we changing the lights? 

Yes we are taking out the recessed lights and patch and replace same as the conference room. 6 more 

lights, 2 ft by 4 ft lights. Take out the spotlights.  

 

Was there a size on the back windows? 

New windows, not opening, fixed 4-Ox4-O 

 

Data lines in mark’s Larsen? Do we want to fix this?  

Take these and move into the wall, box it in, sheet rock it, throw studs up. Whatever. Framed in not in 

the wall.  

 

Leaking by the front window there will be some sheet rock patching east window window sill. I don’t 

think any floor patching but sheetrock 

 

How much sq feet total of the building? 

Not sure? I don’t think an answer was given 

Baseboard is about 650 ft 

 

Public opening? No just receive 

 

Smartlighting anything like that? 

No 

We are hoping to hardwire the conference room lights not smart light but if we have to do wireless we 

can 

 

Did the cabinet layout specify material? Add this 


